
MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
   114 W. Catawissa Street, Nesquehoning, PA 18240 

 
ROLL CALL:  COUNCILMEN DiMICELI, HAWK, JACOBS, SNISCAK JR., STROMELO; 
              COUNCILWOMAN WALCK; PRESIDENT DeMARCO; MAYOR WALCK; 

 SOLICITOR YURCHAK; & CHIEF SMITH 
 President DeMarco called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: Regular Meeting held on December 19, 2007 and the Reorganizational Meeting on 

January 07, 2008 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Sniscak, Jr. seconded to approve the December 19, 
2007 Regular Meeting Minutes and January 7, 2008 Reorganizational Meeting Minutes.   
 
Councilman Hawk stated that there was a name correction, Ed Bielarski, in the Panther Creek Report.  
 
All voted yes.  Motion passed 
 

HEARING OF VISITORS 

 
Patricia Black, 201 West Mill Street, stated that they have been evacuated from their home five times 
because of the neighbor’s furnace.  She stated how Carl Royer owns the house but John Gambino 
was living in and leasing the house.  She stated that they could not put up with this anymore because 
her husband was a heart patient and she was a cancer patient.  Mrs. Black stated how Mr. Gambino 
was cited for the incident on Sunday but Mr. Royer owns the house not Mr. Gambino.  Mrs. Black 
stated that in 2004 Mr. Royer was told to get the furnace fixed or install a new furnace.  She stated 
how Eddie Watkins keeps saying how there was nothing wrong with the furnace.  She stated that 
there has to be something wrong with it if they have been evicted five times.  Councilman DiMiceli 
stated that when it comes time to be re-inspected by their building inspector, who should be there to 
sign off on it.  Solicitor Yurchak stated that they always make the owner of the house responsible.  
Mrs. Black stated that the owner of the house was Carl and Theresa Royer, which was on the deed at 
the Courthouse.   
 
Councilman DiMiceli stated how the house was posted on Sunday.  He stated that Mr. Gambino 
signed off of it and he knows that he cannot go back into the house.  Councilman DiMiceli stated that 
he had talked to the plumber and the system was drained so it would appear that he would not be 
going back in for a while.  Councilman DiMiceli asked in the event that Mr. Gambino does go back 
into the house, how would they handle it?  Solicitor Yurchak stated that it had to be inspected.   
 
Chief Smith stated what they did before was that the plumber would meet him at the house and once 
the plumber checked and certified everything, the plumber would sign off on the form.  Councilman 
DiMiceli stated how according to the ordinance, the building inspector checks it also.  Mrs. Black 
stated how Mr. Watkins keeps saying how there was nothing wrong with the furnace.  President 
DeMarco stated how it was not just up to Mr. Watkins.  He stated how the building inspector has to 
go and give his approval.  President DeMarco stated how they will both (plumber and inspector) be 
liable and it would be their credibility if it would happen again.  Mrs. Black stated that if it happened 
again, they might have four dead people.  President DeMarco stated that they did not want that to 
happen.  Councilman DiMiceli stated that he understood how there was not enough coal over the 
worm.  He stated how that was why they were getting the sulfur odor back into the house.   
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
Councilman DiMiceli asked if there was anything they could be cited for under a nuisance ordinance.  
He stated how they might have to go under the crime code for recklessly endangering someone.  
Solicitor Yurchak stated that he would have to check.   
 
President DeMarco asked John McArdle for a recommendation.  John McArdle stated how they have 
people moving into town, who have no idea how a coal furnace works.  He stated that Mr. Gambino 
told him when he arrived that he shut the furnace off at 3:00 p.m.  He stated that when they arrived 
right before midnight, the boiler temperature was 180 degrees and it was almost zero outside.  Mr. 
McArdle stated that the coal was taken out of the furnace and fresh coal was put in to make it appear 
that there was no fire in the furnace.  He stated how he could tell that there was fire but there was no 
coal in the worm.  Mr. McArdle stated how they have the same problem with another half of double.  
He stated how they were taking bags of coal into the house.  He stated how it was a sulfur smell, 
which backs up through the house, not a high CO reading.  Councilman Jacobs asked about the 
reading the other night.  Mr. McArdle stated that they did not have a CO reading but they did have a 
high combustible sulfur reading.  He stated how it can cause the same kind of problems and how it 
was like a mine gas.  Councilman Jacobs stated that anyone who has worked a coal furnace knows 
how the sulfur smell can back up through the house.  Mr. McArdle stated that everything was taken 
out of the house and Mr. Gambino gave a forwarding address of Beaver Meadows.  Mrs. Black stated 
how the Water Authority had turned off the water.    
 
Mrs. Black stated that before anybody goes back into the house, she wanted the water pipes taken out 
of her cellar.  She stated how the water pipes go through her cellar.  Mrs. Black stated that she wanted 
something done immediately.  President DeMarco stated that since the water was shut off by the 
Water Authority, before someone decides to move in there and have the water turned on; they will 
have the building inspector go in and inspect it.  Mrs. Black asked who was going to be the inspector 
and who was going to pay for it.  President DeMarco stated how the Borough has a building inspector 
and the home owner would pay for it.  President DeMarco stated how nothing would happen now 
since it was empty.  He stated how the water authority would have to be notified to not turn the water 
on until the inspector comes in and inspects the boiler.   
 
Councilman DiMiceli asked Solicitor Yurchak to draft a letter to Carl Royer, since he was the 
property owner telling him what has to be done before anybody can go back in the house.  Mr. 
McArdle stated how he needed to keep the coal hopper filled, which was an ongoing problem.  
President DeMarco stated how if it happened again, the owner was going to be fined.  Councilman 
DiMiceli stated about what he had mentioned earlier that if they knowingly put someone in danger by 
not having coal on the worm, it would go under the crimes code for recklessly endangering another 
person by a careless act.  President DeMarco stated how they would go after the homeowner because 
it was not only the tenant’s responsibility but also the homeowners.   
 
Mrs. Black stated that Mr. Watkins kept saying how there was nothing wrong with the furnace.  
Councilman DiMiceli stated that it was really not the furnace.  He stated how it was the fact that there 
was no coal over the worm and the air was coming back in.  Mrs. Black stated how they were getting 
all the fumes.  Councilman DiMiceli stated that as far as the plumber goes, he was accurate saying 
that there was nothing wrong with the furnace; it was the person who was running it.  President 
DeMarco stated how Solicitor Yurchak will send a letter and they will track it from there. 
 
A few more comments were made in regards to the furnace, the water and the ordinance.   
 
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

POLICE REPORT 

 
Chief Smith gave the Police Report for December as follows: 
 $320.12 fine money received from Magistrate Kosciolek; $85.71 received in Carbon County 
Collections; $250 received in parking tickets; $195.00 received in moving permits; $30.00 received 
in accident reports; 321 total complaints received; 40 citations (9 non-traffic & 31 traffic); 10 
criminal arrests; 12 traffic accidents (9 reportable & 3 non-reportable); 9 court appearances and the 
mileage total was 4,995 (1,333 – 2000 Crown Vic; 919 – 2008 Chevy Impala; 2,215 - 2003 Crown 
Vic; 528 - 2005 Expedition).      
 

HOUSING & CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

 
Chief Smith stated that Council has his and Officer Blisard’s code reports.  Chief Smith asked if he 
could send Officer Wuttke to an Advanced Crime Scene Processing class for one day on Wednesday, 
February 13, 2008 for 6 hours.  He stated that the class was free, however, it was Officer Wuttke’s 
day off and he would be receiving overtime.   
 
Councilman Sniscak, Jr. moved and Councilman DiMiceli seconded to approve sending Officer 
Wuttke to the Advanced Crime Scene Processing class.   All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Jacobs seconded to tentatively approve the handicap 
parking signs for Angela Zovak-Campbell (W. Center Street) and Harold Sugarman (E. Center 
Street) subject to Mayor Walck review.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
Councilman Stromelo moved and Councilwoman Walck seconded to approve the handicap parking 
sign for Tammy Buccilli (W. High Street).  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 
No report. 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 
No report. 
 

PANTHER CREEK ADVISORY REPORT 

 
President DeMarco stated how Bob Marouchoc has accepted the appointment to the Panther Creek 
Advisory Board.  Councilman Hawk stated how they meet the first Monday of the month at 4:00 p.m. 
at the Panther Creek office on Route 54.  He stated that the meeting usually last for a half hour to 
forty-five minutes.   
 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilwoman Walck seconded to appoint Mr. Bob Marouchoc to 
the Panther Creek Advisory Board.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

ENGINEER'S REPORT 

 
� 12.18.07  Carbon Engineering – Subdivision/Land Development Review Comments 
� 01.05.08  Carbon Engineering – NBIS Inspection 

Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Jacobs seconded to accept the bridge inspection report 
from Engineer Ron Tirpak.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 

� 01.18.08  Carbon Engineering -  Wasteload Management Report for 2007 
 

SOLICITOR'S REPORT 

 
� 12.27.07  Robert T. Yurchak letter to PA Assoc. of Borough Solicitors 
� 12.27.07  Robert T. Yurchak letter to Representative Keith McCall 
� 01.08.08  Keith R. McCall to Robert T. Yurchak – Use of radar by local police 
� 01.09.08  Robert T. Yurchak letter to Kirk, Summa & Co – pending litigation 

 
Solicitor Yurchak stated how he composed a list of ordinances that were discussed or drafted.  He 
stated how they will probably wait for the codification of the Zoning Ordinances.   
 
Councilman Jacobs moved and Councilwoman Walck seconded to accept all reports to this point 
(Police Report to Solicitor’s Report).  All voted yes.  Motion passed.   



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
NESQUEHONING SAVINGS BANK TREASURER’S REPORT 

GENERAL FUND  SANITATION FUND 

Balance 11.30.07 272,138.83 Balance 11.30.07 97,720.95 
Receipts 60,699.74 Receipts 65,524.31 
Expenditures 97,407.03 Sewer 34,026.27  
Balance 12.31.07 235,431.54 Expenditures 49,708.50 
  Balance 12.31.07 79,510.49 
 
GENERAL SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND HIGHWAY FUND 
Balance 11.30.07 8,602.96 Balance 11.30.07 36,531.19 
Receipts 17.55 Receipts 71.53 
Expenditures .00 Expenditures 10,221.34 
Balance 12.31.07 8,620.51 Balance 12.31.07 26,381.38 
   
   
  

SPORTS COMPLEX FUND  PLANNING FUND  
Balance 11.30.07 80.80 Balance 09.30.07 10,918.37 
Receipts .16 Receipts 27.55 
Expenditures .00 Expenditures .00 
Balance 12.31.07 80.96 Balance 12.30.07 10,945.92 
  
SANITATION ESCROW  GENERAL SEWER FUND 

Balance 09.30.07 6,718.47 Balance 11.30.07 34,731.77 
Receipts 11,633.34 Receipts 63,427.53 
Expenditures .00 Expenditures 65,873.46 
Balance 12.30.07 18,351.81 Balance 12.31.07 32,285.84 
 
  SEWER OPERATING &  
DEBT SERVICE  MAINTENANCE 

Balance 11.30.07 1,109.39 Balance 11.30.07 29,742.57 
Receipts 2.26 Receipts 18,919.68 
Expenditures .00 Expenditures 24,908.10 
Balance 12.31.07  1,111.65 Balance 12.31.07 23,754.15
    
FIRE TRUCK FUND  POLICE PENSION FUND 

Balance 11.30.07 31,633.02 Balance 11.30.07 521,744.42 
Receipts 64.54 Receipts 1,946.23 
Expenditures .00 Expenditures 8,075.59 
Balance 12.31.07 31,697.56 Acct depreciation 5,165.55 
  Balance 12.31.07 510,449.51 

 

CAPITAL PROJECT  FEMA FUND 

Balance 11.30.07 74,099.47 Balance 11.30.07 15,263.52 
Receipts 12,694.40 Receipts 24.67 
Expenditures 12,300.00 Expenditures 12,300.00 
Balance 12.31.07 74,493.87 Balance 12.31.07 2,988.19
   
   
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

CD REPORT 
  CURRENT            

  VALUE  INTEREST  OPENING CURRENT  RENEWAL  

FUND  12.31.07 12.31.07   DATE   RATE   DATE BANK 

 
PLANNING $       14,274.11 $ 48.17   5-08-05  4.05 %  5-08-08 NSB 
 
GEN. SEWER $     379,861.73 $ 1,281.80   5-08-05  4.05 %  5-08-08 NSB 
 
GEN. SEWER $      10,864.59 $ 29.49   2-28-03  3.25 %  2-28-08 NSB 
 
DEBT SERVICE $     12,625.29 $ 42.60   5-08-05  4.05 %  5-08-08 NSB 
 
DEBT SERVICE $   95,984.13 $ 308.74   6-02-05  3.92 %  6-02-10 NSB 
 

Councilman Jacobs moved and Councilman Sniscak, Jr. seconded to approve the Treasurer’s report and 
the CD Report.   
 
President DeMarco asked Secretary/Treasurer Ahner to check with the Nesquehoning Savings Bank on 
rates for the General Sewer CD dated for February 28, 2008.   
 
All voted yes.  Motion passed. 
 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 
John McArdle stated how they had a little activity in town.  He stated that on Locust Street they had an 
incident with odor of propane, which was a truck parked with residual waste.  He stated that Councilman 
DiMiceli got involved the following day because the truck was still parked there and they had to contact 
the trucking company to get the vehicle moved.   
 
Mr. McArdle stated that the other incident was with the coal sludge up at the Wash Shanty, which was 
being addressed with DEP.  He stated that the contractors have to power broom the highway and it was 
going to be monitored.  He stated how it had caused a couple of accidents because it produced an oily 
residue on the service and when the temperature droped they had to get PennDOT in to sand the area 
down.   
 
Mr. McArdle stated how he was in the process of completing the NIMS 300 class.  He stated how he 
distributed a packet that contained a NIMS Matrix, which he was requesting Council President to sign.  
He stated how he had listed on there the amount of people who were qualified so far in the 100, 200, 300, 
and 700.   
 

� Resolution – Implementing the National Incident Management System 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Sniscak, Jr. seconded to adopt the Resolution 
Implementing the National Incident Management System.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.   
 

FIRE COMMISSIONER’S REPORT 

 
No report. 
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 
Mayor Walck stated that he would like the motion revisited that they had last year concerning any and all 
part-time police officer who worked 36 or more hours in any week received $1.50 per hour more per hour 
retroactive back to January 1, 2008. 
 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Sniscak, Jr. seconded to pay any part-time officer who 
works 36+ hours in a week $1.50 per hour more until such time that they rescind the raise.  All voted yes.  
Motion passed.    
 

TAX COLLECTOR’S REPORT 

 
01 December– 31 December 2008  
 
Real Estate $  13,066.92  
Occupation  1,042.50 
Per Capita 667.00 
Total                           $14,776.42 
 

EXONERATIONS FOR 2007: 

 
Per Capita $5,290.00 (from Pat Vito) 
Occupations $2,910.00 (from Pat Vito) 
 

DELINQUENT FOR 2007: 
 
Real Estate $31,431.12 (turned over to the County) 
Per Capita $  4,230.00 (turned over to Statewide) 
Occupations $  6,150.00 (turned over to Statewide)     
 
Councilman Hawk moved and Councilman Stromelo seconded to accept all the reports to this point 
(Emergency Management to Tax Collector) including approval of Pat Vito’s, tax collector, 2007 Per 
Capita and Occupation exoneration lists and the 2007 Real Estate, Per capita and Occupation delinquent 
lists.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
APPLICATIONS:  Robert G. Pilla Borough Worker     
 

COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

1. 12.19.07  PA DCED – New Equipment & Remodeling Garage 
2. 12.19.07  Dollar Bank Leasing Corp – Leasing services to municipalities 
3. 12.19.07  PSAB – Update 
4. 12.21.07  Micah Gursky – Primary Care Office – Letter of Support 
5. 12.21.07  Ford Motor Company – 2005 Expedition additional coverage 
6. 12.21.07  NewPA news – Update 
7. 12.21.07  Carbon Builders Association – General Membership Meeting 
8. 12.27.07  PennDOT – Inaugural Liquid Fuels Map 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
9. 12.27.07  PA DCED – News Media Relations 
10. 12.27.07  PA DCED – Police Civil Service 
11. 12.27.07  Philip Valenti – follow up to previous memo concerning House Resolution #418 
12. 12.27.07  PSAB – Grant Preparation 
13. 12.20.07  Dave Parry – Request for “Clergy Parking Only” sign 
14. 12.20.07  CMX – Installation of two dishes on Dennison Road 
15. 12.27.07  Mark Nalesnik – EOP Updates 
16. 12.27.07  Mark Nalesnik – NIMS information 
17. 12.27.07  Mark Nalesnik – Emergency Services Training 
18. 12.30.07  Mark Nalesnik – Trained Drug Dog Available 
19. 12.31.07  PA DEP – Letter to Ametek concerning Air Quality Program Operating Permit 
20. 12.31.07  PennDOT – Highway Projects 
21. 01.02.08  Teamsters Local #773 – Hearing 
22. 01.04.08  Lorman Education Services – Zoning & Land Use in PA 
23. 01.04.08  2008 Newly Elected Borough Officials Training 
24. 01.05.08  Ptlm. Timothy Wuttke – Batteries, etc. for police cars 
25. 01.05.08  Brandon Lawrence – Emergency Services Night in June 
26. 01.05.08  DCNR – A DCNR Grants Workshop 
27. 01.07.08  Universal Line Painting – Line painting & safety marking 
28. 01.07.08  Philip Valenti – Update – Economic Crisis – Homeowners & Bank Protection Act 
29. 01.07.08  PSAB – 2008 Police Civil Service Training 
30. 01.08.08  Kirk, Summa & Co – Annual Audit 
31. 01.08.08  CC Conservation District – NPDES Permit # PAS 101321-1 Timber Harvesting 
32. 01.10.08  PSAB – Salary Benefits Survey 
33. 01.11.08  NEPA – Municipal program assistance 
34. 01.14.08  DCED – Planning essentials for newly elected officials 
35. 01.17.08  Lorman – Building Codes in PA 
36. 01.18.08  Keith R. McCall – Grant Workshop 

37. 01.22.08  ET Floor Coverings – Business Parking Sign 

Councilman Stromelo moved and Councilman Jacobs seconded to approve the business parking sign for 
ET Floor Covering.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
Councilman Jacobs moved and Councilman Stromelo seconded to approve all communications and 
accept the application and place them on file.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.  
 

BILLS TO BE RATIFIED, EXPENDITURES AND RECEIPTS 

 

Councilman Jacobs moved and Councilwoman Walck seconded to deposit all receipts, approve all bills to 
be ratified and pay all other bills including the expenditures of the Home Program.  All voted yes.  Motion 
passed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

1. STREETS MARK STROMELO, CHAIRMAN; DON DeMARCO, CO-CHAIRMAN; 

  MICHAEL SNISCAK, JR 

 

Councilman Stromelo stated about the letter pertaining to the salt contract, which had to be acted on 
before March 15, 2008.  He stated how the contract would be for 2008 – 2009.  He stated about having 
Secretary/Treasurer Ahner fill out the appropriate paperwork.  Secretary/Treasurer Ahner stated how she 
will need to know what kind of tonnage they were looking at again this year.  She stated how she had 
given them a sample of what was submitted last year.   
 
Councilman Stromelo moved and Councilman Jacobs seconded to get the paperwork in for the Salt Bids.  
All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
President DeMarco stated about the Committee setting a date to meet sometime in February.  The Street 
Committee scheduled a meeting at the Borough Garage for 4:30 p.m. on Monday, February 4, 2008.  
 

2. SEWER  DAVID HAWK, CHAIRMAN; FRANK JACOBS, CO-CHAIRMAN;  
    FRANK DiMICELI 

 

� 01.17.08  Heritage Sign & Display- Waive late fees for November 2007- mail vandalism 

Councilman DiMiceli moved and Councilman Sniscak, Jr. seconded to waive the late free of $21.00 for 
Heritage Sign & Display this one time.  All voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 
Councilman Jacobs stated how he talked to David Digilio and the new employee was working out well 
down at the Sewer Plant.   
 

3. BUILDINGS FRANK JACOBS, CHAIRMAN; ROSE WALCK, CO-CHAIRMAN;  

    DON DeMARCO   
 
Councilman Jacobs stated how he will have to get a plumber in because there was a small pipe leaking on 
the furnace in the basement. 
 

4. POLICE MICHAEL SNISCAK, JR, CHAIRMAN; FRANK DiMICELI, CO- 

PUBLIC SAFETY    CHAIRMAN; DAVID HAWK 

       
Councilman Sniscak, Jr. stated about a memorandum that was given to Council from the Mayor.  He 
stated how the Committee met with the Mayor and the Chief and resolved the problem that the memo 
presented but he would like Solicitor Yurchak to give a definite answer on the memo because the 
committee did not agree with it.  Solicitor Yurchak stated that the Council Members would have to 
address it internally.  Councilman Sniscak, Jr. stated how they did address it and the Mayor had asked that 
the memo be rescinded.   
 
Councilman Sniscak, Jr. stated how he received a memorandum from Chief Smith.  He stated how the 
Chief was requesting that the Police and Public Safety Committee meet to start negotiations on his 
contract.  Councilman Sniscak, Jr. stated how he would like to set up a meeting and they should pick a 
time because they were already short an officer.  He stated that the Chief, the Mayor and the Public and 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
Public Safety Committee Members will meet to go over the requests and then submit them to all of 
Council. Councilman DiMiceli stated how they would work out the time with the Chief.  He stated that 
the one thing that they were going to do was define the Chief’s duties.   
  

5. SANITATION MARK STROMELO, CHAIRMAN; DAVID HAWK, CO-CHAIRMAN;  

    FRANK DiMICELI 

 
Councilman Stromelo stated how the employee who was terminated filed a grievance.  Solicitor Yurchak 
stated how he would take care of it and get in touch with Robbie Best.   
 

6. RECREATION DAVID HAWK, CHAIRMAN; MARK STROMELO, CO-CHAIRMAN;  

    ROSE WALCK 

 

Councilman Hawk stated that the Recreation Commission had a meeting the night before and the purpose 
for the meeting came from the Borough auditor.  He stated how in the past the Recreation Commission’s 
finances have been included in the Borough’s Financial Statements.  He stated how the auditor’s 
recommendation was, due to some new changes and new criteria in auditing, that the Recreation 
Commission’s Financial Reports be separate from the Borough’s Financial Reports.  Councilman Hawk 
stated how they have their own accounts but were included in the Borough’s audit statements.   
 
President DeMarco asked who was going to do their audit.  Councilman Hawk stated that with being a 
not-for-profit, they have a little more flexibility than the Borough.  He stated that they could do an internal 
audit based on forming an audit committee of their own members or they could hire somebody.  
Councilman Hawk stated that they were looking into contacting a CPA, which would be cheaper than 
what the Borough’s Auditor would charge.  President DeMarco stated that he did trust them but they 
should not do their own audit.  Councilman Stromelo stated how they were looking at Norman Richards.  
He stated how Julian had recommended him.  He stated how he had talked to Julian and then talked to 
Councilman Hawk.  Councilman Stromelo stated how Julian recommended making it retroactive effective 
January 1, 2007 so that it was not included in that years audit.   
 
Councilman Jacobs asked Solicitor Yurchak that the Borough Code stated how any agency that the 
Borough subsidizes must be included in the yearly audit.  Solicitor Yurchak stated that he would have to 
check.  Secretary/Treasurer Ahner stated that because the Borough does not sign the checks they have no 
knowledge of the cash flow.  She stated how they were a separate entity with there own EIN number kind 
of like the Nesquehoning Water Authority.  Secretary/Treasurer Ahner stated how all Council does was to 
appoint the Commission Members and the Recreation Commission runs their own business.  Councilman 
Hawk stated how they do pay a lot of the bills but they do not give the Commission any money.   
 
Councilman DiMiceli stated that anybody who was handling money should be bonded.  He asked if they 
were bonded and stated that if they were not bonded that maybe they could get bonded.  President 
DeMarco asked if they were bonded or if it fell under the Borough.  Councilman Stromelo stated that he 
thought that they were bonded.  Councilman Jacobs stated how they had some problem years ago when 
the fund was drained.  Councilman DiMiceli stated how if it did happen the Commission could get some 
of their money back.  Councilman Hawk stated how he felt that it was in the Borough’s best interest to go 
in that direction.   
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 
Councilman Hawk moved and Councilman DiMiceli seconded to separate the Recreation Commission’s 
financial statements from the Borough’s financial statements retroactive back to January 1, 2007.   
 
Councilman Jacobs asked if the Commission would produce to Council a copy of their audit when it was 
completed because they should have something on file.  Councilman Hawk stated “yes”.  Councilman 
Stromelo stated how they will still get the reports that were provided already.  Larry Fox asked if they 
were having their own books audited, who would be paying for that audit.  President DeMarco stated how 
it would be the Commission’s responsibility.   
 
All voted yes with the exception of Councilman Stromelo who was not voting.  Motion passed.    
  

7. BUDGET  DAVID HAWK, CHAIRMAN; FRANK JACOBS, CO-CHAIRMAN;  

    DON DeMARCO 

 

� 01.17.08  Julian Kirk – questions on budgeted line items 

Councilman Hawk mentioned how they received a letter from the auditor asking for information on four 
line items, which came in over budget for 2007.  He asked Secretary/Treasurer Ahner if she responded yet 
or not.  Secretary/Treasurer Ahner stated how she did try to explain some of them.  She stated how the 
police ended up being over because of the police car and the fire was over because of the fire truck.  
Councilman Hawk stated how the auditor recommended that in the future they might consider modifying 
the budget toward the end of the year to move money from the areas where they had not hit the budgeted 
amount to the areas where they were over budget.  He stated how it would not affect the overall budget.   
 

8. PURCHASING ROSE WALCK, CHAIRWOMAN; FRANK JACOBS, CO-CHAIRMAN;  

    FRANK Di MICELI 
No report.   

 

9. FIRE/AMBULANCE FRANK DiMICELI, CHAIRMAN; DAVID HAWK, CO CHAIRMAN; 

PUBLIC SAFETY   MICHAEL SNISCAK, JR 

 

Councilman DiMiceli stated how he would like to thank the fire companies for following through with the 
incident at Mrs. Black’s house.  He stated that he also wanted to thank Officer Saullo for following up on 
Sunday.  Councilman DiMiceli stated how they would probably have a committee meeting within the 
next month.   
 
Councilman Jacobs moved and Councilman Stromelo seconded to accept all the Committee Reports.  All 
voted yes.  Motion passed.    
 

JR. RECREATION COMMISSION 

 
No report. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
No report. 
 



MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF NESQUEHONING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Wednesday, January 23, 2008 at 7:00p.m., Borough Office 

OLD BUSINESS 

 
No report. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Councilman DiMiceli moved and President DeMarco seconded to adjourn the meeting.  All voted yes.  
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
RoniSue Ahner 
Secretary/Treasurer  
 
 


